

# Erie County Community College Board of Trustees Minutes of the Special Meeting April 7, 2021 - 5:00 pm Location of Meeting - Virtual on Zoom Only

Trustees:

Mr. Tom Benson

Mr. Ron DiNicola

Mr. Justin Gallagher

Mayor Dave Mitchell

Ms. Cheryl Rush Dix

Ms. Kathryn Sintal

Ms. Christina Vogel

Dr. Annette Wagner

Absent:

Pastor Charles Mock

#### Additional attendees via Zoom:

Dr. Judith Gay, Interim President; Mrs. Jackie Fink, Assistant to the President;

Ms. Carolyn Burroughs, Director of Human Resources/Compliance Director of Title IX; Ms. Heidi Sheehan, Controller, Dr. Narcisa Polonio, Consultant; Mr. Tom Tupitza, Legal Counsel; Mr. Carl Anderson, Erie County Council

From the Public:

1 unidentified

#### Call to Order

Presiding Officer, Chairman Ron DiNicola, called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM on Wednesday, April 7<sup>th</sup>, 2021.

#### Roll Call

At Roll Call five (5) trustees were present; three (3) joined following roll call. One trustee was absent.

#### **ACTION ITEMS:**

#### Approval of Special Meeting Minutes of March 31st, 2021

Trustee Benson moved to accept the minutes of the Special Meeting held Wednesday, March 31, 2021 as written. Trustee Gallagher seconded. Motion unanimously passed.

#### Approval of Policies presented by Interim President

Trustee Gallagher moved to approve the 3 policies present by the Interim President. Trustee Benson seconded. Motion unanimously passed. The following policies were presented:

Policy II.A.1: Policy Against Title IX Sexual Harassment and/or Sexual Misconduct

Policy II.B.5: Clery Act

Policy VI.A.1: Purchasing Goods and Services

#### **BUSINESS BEFORE THE BOARD:**

#### Remarks of the County Council Liaison

Mr. Carl Anderson, Chairman of Erie County Council, commented on the work and efforts put forth by the board and the college administration. He remarked on the gratifying feedback he is hearing from the pubic, especially on movement with local realtors and site tours.

#### Announcements from the College

Interim President, Dr. Judith Gay announced and introduced Ms. Heidi Sheehan, CPA. Heidi began her role as Controller for ECCCPA on Monday, April 5<sup>th</sup>, 2021.

#### Report of the Interim President

Interim President, Dr. Judith Gay, conveyed three main items in her report:

- a. Preparation of 2021/2022 budget.
  - i. This budget is part of the submission for the 120-Day Plan and final revision is nearing completion. Tuition and fees will need

board approval for inclusion in the budget and the plan; those will come before the board soon and will need approved annually.

- b. Progress on the preparation of the 120-Day Plan.
  - i. Final plan is due at the end of April 2021.
  - ii. Some draft chapters of the plan have been sent to the PDE colleagues for comments. Work continues on the draft calendar and catalog. Review of course numbers and scheduling/hours continues. Looking into a schedule that will eliminate the 50 minute class time allowing more instruction time.
  - iii. Draft narrative will be distributed to the board soon
  - iv. Though not required, a COVID-19 safety plan will be included in the plan.
  - v. Chairman DiNicola inquired how the college will handle students desiring to achieve credits that become unsuccessful and retaining them for a successful degree completion.
    - 1. Dr. Gay remarked that the college will have a plan for not-college ready enrollees that will support students while they build their skills. There will also be support systems in place for student while enrolled in courses not specific to their major.
    - 2. Dr. Gay further indicated this is why dual enrollment is a popular option for students still enrolled in high school.
- c. Meetings.
  - a. Meetings continue members of the community, though somewhat less at this time with concentration on the 120-Day Plan.

#### **Executive Session**

Board entered Executive Session following adjournment of this open meeting for purposes of contract, personnel, and real estate with notice of no further anticipated action and no return.

#### Motion to Adjourn

Trustee Gallagher moved to adjourn the meeting at 5:24 PM. Trustee Dix seconded. Motion unanimously approved. Meeting adjourned at 5:24 PM.

#### SPECIAL MEETING

#### **ERIE COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES**

Wednesday, April 7, 2021

5:00 p.m. – VIRTUAL (Via ZOOM) Board Meeting

\_\_\_\_\_

- 1. Call to Order
- 2. Roll Call
- 3. Pledge of Allegiance
- 4. Approval of Special Meeting Minutes of March 31, 2021
- 5. Hearing of the Public
- 6. Remarks of County Council Liaison
- 7. Announcements from the College
  - (a) Introduction of Controller, Ms. Heidi Sheehan

#### **Reports**

- 8. Report of the Interim President
  - (a) Preparation of 2021/2022 Budget
  - (b) Progress on preparation of 120 Day Plan
  - (c) Meetings;
    - i. Niven Astari Carpenter, New American Liaison for City of Erie
    - ii. Interview with National Public Radio (NPR) regarding starting the College during a pandemic
    - iii. Mary Bula, Director of Erie Together
    - iv. Jennifer Pontzer, Director of Career Street
    - v. The Association of Governing Boards conference

#### **New Business:**

- 9. Approval of policies presented by the Interim President
  - (a) Policy II.A.1: Policy Against Title IX Sexual Harassment and/or Sexual Misconduct
  - (b) Policy II.B.5: Cleary Act
  - (c) Policy VI.A.1: Purchasing Goods and Services
- 10. Other Business to Come Before the Board

## BOARD WILL ADJOURN INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR PURPOSES OF CONTRACT, PERSONNEL, AND REAL ESTATE. NO FURTHER ACTION ANTICIPATED FOR RETURN.

11. Motion to Adjourn.

#### SECTION II: GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

SUBSECTION A: RIGHTS

#### POLICY II.A.1: POLICY AGAINST TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT AND/OR

#### SEXUAL MISCONDUCT

#### **I.INTRODUCTION**

Erie County Community College is committed to maintaining an educational and working environment free of unlawful discrimination and harassment. Under this policy, forms of discrimination or harassment based on sex will not be tolerated. This policy prohibits Title IX Sexual Harassment by or against any student, faculty, administrator, staff, employee, vendor, contractor, volunteer, or visitor to the College. Title IX Sexual Harassment includes Sexual Harassment, Sexual Assault, Dating Violence, Domestic Violence or Stalking. As set forth in this policy, the College will take all appropriate steps to prevent and respond to incidents of sexual harassment in a prompt and equitable manner.

Reports of Sexual Harassment that do not rise to the level of unwelcome verbal or physical conduct based on sex or of a sexual nature that does not rise to the level of sexual harassment under this policy may be covered by the College's Anti-Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Policy.

This policy will:

- Define Title IX Sexual Harassment.
- Explain how to make a report of Title IX Sexual Harassment.
- Identify interim measures and support services available for Complainants or Respondents under this policy.
- Provide information on the Title IX process, including how reports made under this policy are equitably investigated and the hearing process.

#### **II.POLICY**

#### A. Scope of Policy

This policy applies to all students, faculty, administrators, staff, employees, vendors, contractors, volunteers, and visitors to the College, regardless of sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or any other characteristic, and regardless of the sex or sexes of the parties involved, including when the parties involved are all of the same sex. Under this policy, the College has jurisdiction over reports of sexual harassment that takes place on all College property and at any location, event or circumstance over which the College has substantial control over both the alleged Respondent and the context in which the conduct occurs, to include any building owned or controlled by a student organization that is officially recognized by the College.

At the time of the filing of a formal complaint, the Complainant must be participating in or attempting to participate in the College's educational programming or activity. Students, employees, and third parties may file reports of sexual harassment, under this policy.

#### B. Title IX Coordinator

The College's Title IX Coordinator is responsible for overseeing the administration of this policy and the College's response to reports made pursuant to this policy. The contact information for the Title IX Coordinator is:

Carolyn Y. Burroughs Phone: (937) 838-5757

E-mail: Cyburroughs@gmail.com

#### C. Conduct Prohibited by this Policy

The following conduct is prohibited by this policy:

#### 1. Sexual Harassment, defined as follows:

- a. **Sexual Assault:** Sexual assault includes any forcible or non-forcible sexual act directed against another person without the consent of said person, including instances where the person is incapable of giving consent. Sexual assault includes the offenses of rape, fondling, incest, statutory rape, forcible sodomy (oral or anal sexual intercourse), and sexual assault with an object. These terms and other forms of sexual assault are further defined by the Code of Federal Regulations and the Pennsylvania Crimes Code, as set forth in Appendix A of this policy. The conduct defined in Appendix A is also prohibited by this policy.
- b. **Sexual Harassment:** Sexual harassment is unwelcome\*\* verbal or physical conduct based on sex or gender or unwelcome verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature (including sexual advances or requests for sexual favors) when:
  - I. Submission to or rejection of such conduct is made implicitly or explicitly a term or condition of an individual's employment, study, or participation in College-sponsored activities;
  - II. Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for decisions affecting a person's study, employment, or participation in Collegesponsored activities; or
  - III. The conduct is determined by a reasonable person to be **so severe**, **pervasive and objectively offensive** it effectively denies a person's equal access to the College's education program or activity, work or academic performance or ability to participate in or receive the benefits, services, or opportunities in academic or work programs, or it creates an intimidating, hostile, offensive, or demeaning academic or working environment;

\*\*Conduct is "unwelcome" if it was not requested or invited by the Complainant, and the Complainant considered the conduct to be undesirable or offensive. Participation in the conduct or the failure to complain does not always mean that the conduct was welcome. The fact that a person may have welcomed some conduct does not necessarily mean that a person welcomed other conduct. The fact that a person requested or invited conduct on one occasion does not mean that the conduct is welcome on a subsequent occasion.

Examples of behavior which may be considered sexual harassment include, but are not limited to:

- Direct or implied threats that submission to sexual advances will be a condition of employment, work status, promotion, grades or any other aide, benefit or service of the College;
- Direct propositions of a sexual nature;
- Sexually explicit statements, questions, jokes or teasing;
- Unnecessarily touching, panting, hugging or brushing against a person's body;
- Remarks of a sexual nature regarding a person's clothing, body, sexual activity, previous sexual experience, or sexual orientation;
- Repeated requests for dates or social interaction made through verbal requests, social media, texts, notes telephone calls, facsimiles, emails, or other electronic communication;
- Visual displays of inappropriate sexual images; and
- Attempted or actual incidents of Sexual Assault, Sexual Violence, or any of the other conduct prohibited by this policy.
- c. **Sexual Violence:** Sexual violence is physical sexual acts perpetrated against a person's will or where a person is incapable of giving consent. A number of different acts fall into the category of sexual violence, including Sexual Assault.
- 2. **Relationship Violence** is a broad term that includes the following behavior:
  - a. **Dating Violence:** Dating violence is violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim.

The existence of such a relationship shall be determined based on the reporting party's statement and with consideration of the length of the relationship, the type of relationship, and the frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship.

Dating violence includes, but is not limited to, sexual or physical abuse or the threat of such abuse. Dating violence does not include acts covered under the definition of Domestic Violence.

Note: Dating Violence is not defined under Pennsylvania law.

- b. **Domestic Violence:** Domestic Violence is a felony or misdemeanor crime of violence committed by:
- A current or former spouse or intimate partner of the victim;
- o By a person with whom the victim shares a child in common;
- By a person who is cohabitating with or has cohabitated with the victim as a spouse or intimate partner;
- By a person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under the domestic or family violence laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania; or
- By any other person against an adult or youth victim who is protected from that person's acts under the domestic or family violence laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

Note: Domestic Violence is not defined under Pennsylvania law.

#### 3. Stalking:

Engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a reasonable person to:

- Fear for the person's safety or the safety of others; or
- Suffer substantial emotional distress.
  - "Course of conduct" means two or more acts, including, but not limited to, acts in which the stalker directly, indirectly, or through third parties, by any action, method, device, or means, follows, monitors, observes, surveils, threatens, or

communicates to or about a person, or interferes with a person's property.

"Reasonable person" means a reasonable person under similar circumstances and with similar identities to the victim.

"Substantial emotional distress" means significant mental suffering or anguish that may, but does not necessarily, require medical or other professional treatment or counseling.

Stalking as defined by the Pennsylvania Crimes Code is also prohibited conduct under this policy. See Appendix A.

#### 4. Retaliation:

Any adverse treatment that is reasonably likely to deter someone from filing a report or participating in an investigation or disciplinary process under this policy. Retaliation can be verbal, written, graphic, electronic or physical, and can include but is not limited to intimidation, threats, coercion or unfavorable employment or educational actions directed toward an individual to deter them from filing a report or participating in the investigation or disciplinary process. Retaliation also includes acts taken with the intent of seeking retribution against an individual who filed a report or who otherwise participated in the investigation or disciplinary process.

#### D. Important Information Regarding Prohibited Conduct

#### 1. Consent

As used in this policy, the term "Consent" means words or actions that show a knowing and voluntary agreement to engage in mutually agreed sexual activity. Consent must be ongoing throughout sexual activity and can be revoked at any time. Silence or absence of resistance will not necessarily imply consent. Assent (an affirmative statement or action) shall not constitute consent if it is given by a person who is unable to make a reasonable judgment concerning the nature or harmfulness of the activity because of their intoxication, unconsciousness, youth, mental deficiency or incapacity (also known as "Incapacitation"), or if the assent is the product of threat, force, or coercion. Consent to prior sexual activities does not constitute consent to future acts. Consent to engage in sexual activity with one person does not imply consent to engage in sexual activity with another person.

- 2. Prohibited Conduct Through Different Communication Mediums
  Violations of this policy may occur through various communication mediums, including
  but not limited to, face-to-face contact, telephone, written notes, Wiki contributions,
  instant messages, text messaging, file sharing, voice chat, video chat, social
  networking, or blogging that occurs on College property or at any location, event or
  circumstance over which the College has substantial control over both the alleged
  Respondent and the context in which the conduct occurs.\*\*

  \*\*Misconduct that occurs through the use of the above mediums and does not fall
  within the jurisdiction of this policy may still be investigated under the College's Anti-
- Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Policy and Non-Title IX Policy Against Sexual Misconduct, Relationship Violence, and Stalking.

  3. Attempting, Assisting, or Encouraging Prohibited Conduct An attempt to commit any of the prohibited conduct identified in this policy, or

assisting or willfully or knowingly encouraging such prohibited conduct, may also be

#### 4. Retaliation

considered a violation of this policy.

The College prohibits retaliation against any individual who makes or intends to make a report of sexual misconduct or Title IX sexual harassment under this policy or participates or intends to participate in the investigatory or disciplinary process under this policy. Retaliation in violation of this policy will be subject to disciplinary action.

#### 5. Consensual Sexual or Romantic Relationships

Consensual relationships occurring between supervisors and subordinates or faculty and students can lead to circumstances which may be interpreted as sexual harassment. Consensual relationships may also be viewed as causing a hostile or offensive work or academic environment when other staff or students believe that the person(s) involved in the relationship(s) is/are receiving favorable treatment in employment or educational decisions and actions.

The College strongly discourages any sexual or romantic relationship between a faculty member and a student where the faculty member has authority or influence over, or responsibility for, that student. Similarly, the College discourages any sexual or romantic relationship between a supervisor and a staff employee, where the supervisor has authority or influence over, or responsibility for, that employee. Consensual relationships among faculty and students or supervisors and staff where such authority, influence or responsibility exists are strongly discouraged. Any consensual relationships which create severe, pervasive and objectively offensive work or academic environments for other students or staff are prohibited.

#### E. Confidentiality

The College is committed to protecting the privacy of all parties involved in a report made under this policy, to the extent permitted by applicable law and subject to the College's reporting obligations as described below. The College will treat all reports with sensitivity, and reports, investigations and findings of hearing proceedings will only be shared in compliance with this policy. Any interim or supportive measures will be kept as confidential as possible, and shared only on a need-to-know basis. Information pertaining to reports made under this policy will be kept in a secure manner.

#### III.REPORTING VIOLATIONS OF THIS POLICY

Students, employees and third parties may file reports of violations of this policy with the Title IX Coordinator in person, by mail, telephone, or by email. They may also report violations of this policy to any other College employee. The contact information for the Title IX Coordinator is:

Carolyn Y. Burroughs Phone: (937) 838-5757

E-mail: Cyburroughs@gmail.com

#### A. Reporting to Other College Employees

The College understands that not every individual will be comfortable making a report to the Title IX Coordinator identified above, and some individuals will prefer to report allegations of potential violations of this policy to an employee of the College that he, she or they trust. For example, a student may choose to make a

report to their instructor or counselor, or an employee may choose to make a report to their supervisor.

All College employees share in the responsibility of ensuring compliance with this policy and are mandated to report any and all allegations of sexual harassment and sexual misconduct to the Title IX Coordinator. Employees must report to the Title IX Coordinator all relevant details about the alleged violation that the individual has shared. The Title IX Coordinator will then address the report in accordance with this policy.

#### B. Contents of a Report

An individual will be asked to provide as much detail as possible in making a report, including the name and contact information of the Complainant, the Respondent, and any witnesses (if known); the date, time, and location of the incident; a description of the prohibited conduct; supporting documentation or other evidence (pictures, texts, emails, etc.), if any; and any other information which would assist the College in appropriately investigating and responding to the report.

#### C. Anonymous Reporting

In order to maximize the College's ability to effectively investigate and respond to reports under this policy, the College encourages individuals to provide identifying information when filing a report under this policy. However, the College will accept anonymous reports. The College will make all reasonable efforts to investigate and respond to reports filed anonymously, however, the College may be limited in its ability to fully investigate and resolve the report depending upon the level of information available in the report.

#### D. Who May Report

Note that in addition to the filing of a report by a Complainant, anyone can file a report of an alleged violation of this policy, including a witness or a third party. While there is no required time frame for submitting reports under this policy, the College strongly encourages reporters to submit a report as soon as possible to maximize the College's opportunity to effectively investigate and respond to the report. Individuals who make a report pursuant to this policy will receive a copy of this policy or be provided with the link to this policy on the College's website.

#### E. Criminal Report

A Complainant who alleges to have been the victim of Sexual Assault, Relationship Violence, or Stalking also has the right to pursue criminal action against the Respondent, including seeking a protective order. Whether or not the Complainant chooses to seek criminal action is within the discretion of the Complainant. If requested by the Complainant, the College will provide reasonable assistance or other support in notifying law enforcement of the report. The College will cooperate

with a criminal investigation to the extent permitted by law. The College reserves the right to notify law enforcement of reports made pursuant to this policy if the College determines that such notification is necessary to protect the health and safety of the College community or the public.

An individual may choose to pursue criminal action at any time. The College encourages individuals contemplating pursuing criminal action to consult with law enforcement as soon as possible after the alleged incident in order to ensure that any physical and other forms of evidence are preserved in as timely a fashion as possible.

Reports made pursuant to this policy are completely separate from a criminal investigation. Even if a criminal investigation is ongoing, the College will still conduct its own investigation in accordance with this policy. While the criminal investigation is pending, law enforcement may require the College to delay or otherwise temporarily limit its own investigation, which may delay the College's resolution of the report. The College will comply with any such request by law enforcement to the extent permitted by law, and continue with its investigation as soon as reasonably practicable.

#### F. False Report

A report made under this policy which is later found to be knowingly or intentionally false or made maliciously without regard for truth may be subject to disciplinary action. Reports made in good faith, even if the allegations are not substantiated, will not be subject to discipline.

#### G. College's Reporting Obligations

Reports made pursuant to this policy which involve Dating Violence, Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault, and Stalking will be included in the College's annual report of crime statistics in the College's Annual Security Report, which is made available to the public, and to the U.S. Department of Education, as required by law. Reports of crime statistics do not include any personally identifiable information.

Finally, the College reserves the right to notify law enforcement of reports made pursuant to this policy if the College determines that such notification is necessary to protect the health and safety of the College community or the public.

#### H. When the Report Involves a Victim Under 18 Years Old

In the event that a report made under this policy involves reasonably suspected or actual child abuse or neglect, all College employees who are mandated reporters must report child abuse or neglect that they know about, see, or have reasonable cause to suspect first to the Pennsylvania Department of Public Welfare Child Line at (800) 932-0313, and then to College Security. If the employee is unable or prefers

not to contact College Security, the employee may contact the Vice President for Business, Finance and Administration.

#### IV. INVESTIGATION AND HEARING PROCEDURES

The College will ensure that it takes steps to investigate and remedy reports of violations of this policy in a prompt and equitable manner. These steps include prompt contact with the Complainant by the Title IX Coordinator to explain the process for filing a formal complaint. If a formal complaint is filed, it will be promptly handled in accordance with the following procedures. In all cases, the Title IX Coordinator will maintain oversight over the investigation and disciplinary process. The parties will be promptly notified in writing of which office is responsible for conducting the investigation and disciplinary process, as designated by the Title IX Coordinator, and will be provided with more detailed information regarding the applicable investigation and disciplinary procedures. If a complainant chooses not to file a formal complaint, the Title IX Coordinator will still advise the complainant of any available supportive measures.

#### A. Investigation Procedures:

- 1. Title IX Coordinator will promptly contact and explain the College's supportive measures to the Complainant.
- 2. Title IX Coordinator will explain the process for filing a formal complaint.
- 3. A review of the allegations by the Title IX Coordinator to determine whether they constitute prohibited conduct under this policy.
- 4. Should the review reveal the following, the report of sexual harassment will not be investigated pursuant to this policy\*\*:
  - a. The allegations, if proven, do not constitute a violation of the conduct prohibited by the policy.
  - b. The conduct did not occur on College property or at a location over which the College had substantial control of both the Respondent and the context in which the conduct occurred.
  - c. The Complainant is not participating or attempting to participate in the College's educational programming or activities.
  - d. The conduct occurred outside of the United States.
    - \*\*Allegations not investigated under this policy may still be investigated if they violate other College policies.
- 5. Should the review reveal the following, the report of sexual harassment *may not* be investigated pursuant to this policy:
  - a. The Complainant withdraws the complaint in writing.
  - b. The Respondent is no longer enrolled or employed at the College.
  - c. Specific circumstances exist that prevent the College from investigating the complaint.
- 6. The College will take appropriate supportive measures as necessary.
- 7. Informal resolution procedures may be available to resolve reports of potential violations of this policy; however,:
  - a. It is only available when a formal complaint is filed:
  - b. The College cannot require the parties to participate in informal resolution;
  - c. Both parties must agree in writing to participate;
  - d. Either party may withdraw from the informal resolution process at any time prior to resolution; and

- e. Informal resolution will never be appropriate for reports of violations of this policy when the Respondent is an employee of the College and the complainant is a student.
- 8. Written notice of the process and/or informal resolution will be provided to the parties that a complaint pursuant to this policy has been filed. The notice will be sent simultaneously to both the Complainant and Respondent. The notice will include an explanation of the investigation process and information regarding the parties' right to an Advisor of their choice.\*\* Complainants and Respondents may elect to obtain an Advisor or have one provided to them by the College. The parties may or may not elect to have an attorney serve as the Advisor.
  - \*\*A list of Advisors provided by the College will be available from, the Title IX Coordinator. Such list will be updated periodically by the College.
- 9. Interviews with the Complainant, the Respondent and any witnesses.
- 10. Review of student and/or personnel files.
- 11. The collection and examination of other relevant documents. The burden of proof and responsibility for gathering evidence for investigations rests with the College and not the parties. Medical records for a party cannot be collected, accessed, considered, disclosed or otherwise used, unless the College obtains the voluntary, written consent of the party.
- 12. The College will conduct a prompt, thorough, equitable and impartial investigation and issue a comprehensive investigation report which fairly summarizes relevant evidence. Both parties will have an equal opportunity to review the gathered evidence at least 10-days before the investigation report is finalized, and an equal opportunity to submit written responses to the evidence. Both parties will also have an equal opportunity to review the finalized investigation report at least 10-days prior to the hearing and submit additional written responses to the investigation report.

#### E. Hearing Procedures:

- 1. The College will conduct a live hearing (either in-person or via video-conference) at which both parties will have an Advisor of their choice present the relevant evidence and conduct cross-examination of the parties and witnesses.
- 2. The College will seek to resolve all reports of violations of this policy within 90 calendar days, whenever practicable. The parties will be advised in writing when resolution is expected to take longer.
- 3. Both parties will receive simultaneous written notice of the outcome of the hearing and any disciplinary sanctions in the form of a written decision from the Hearing Officer conducting the hearing.
- 4. The written decision will include the following information:
  - a. The standard of evidence (preponderance of the evidence) used to review and analyze the evidence presented;
  - b. The facts that potentially constitute sexual harassment;
  - c. The procedural history of the process, to include all dates for notices to the parties, interviews and site visits, and methods for gathering evidence:
  - d. The findings of facts supporting the determination;
  - e. A separate written analysis of each allegation and the determination;
  - f. Disciplinary sanctions, if appropriate;
  - g. Whether the remedies to restore/preserve the Complainant's equal access to educational programming and/or activities will be provided to the Complainant by the College; and
  - h. Notice that both parties have the right to appeal the decision.

- 5. For hearings involving a Student as the Respondent the Hearing Officers shall be appointed in accordance with the Student Code of Conduct.
- 6. For hearings involving a Faculty or Staff member as the Respondent the Hearing Officer shall be appointed by the College's President.

#### F. Appeals:

- 1. Both parties have an equal right to a prompt appeal of the determination of the hearing or from a dismissal of a formal complaint of sexual harassment under this policy or any of the allegations therein.
- 2. Grounds for appeal include the following:
  - a. A procedural irregularity that affected the outcome of the investigation/ hearing.
  - b. The discovery of new evidence that was not reasonably available at the time of determination by the Hearing Officer or dismissal by the Title IX Coordinator.
  - c. A conflict of interest or bias with the Title IX Coordinator, Investigator or Hearing Officer, either generally or specifically that affected the outcome of the investigation or hearing.
- 3. Appeals involving a Student Respondent must be filed in accordance with the Student Code of Conduct in writing with the Dean of Student Affairs and Enrollment within five (5) school weekdays of the notice of the outcome of the investigation.
- 4. Appeals involving an Employee Respondent must be filed with the College President in writing within five (5) working days of the notice of the outcome of the investigation.
- 5. Both parties will have a reasonable, equal opportunity to submit a written statement in support of or challenging the outcome.
- 6. The appeal officer will issue a written decision describing the result of the appeal and the rationale for the result.
- 7. Both parties will receive simultaneous written notice regarding the outcome of any appeal.

#### V. SANCTIONS FOR VIOLATING THIS POLICY AND SAFE HARBOR

#### A. Sanctions

Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of an employee or expulsion of a student, subject to the relevant policies and procedures governing the disciplinary process applicable to the alleged Respondent.

#### B. Safe Harbor

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a student witness or student victim of an incident of a violation of this policy who reports such incident in good faith will not be sanctioned by the College for admitting in the report to a violation of the College's Student Code of Conduct related to the use of drugs or alcohol.

#### VI. SUPPORTIVE MEASURES

Supportive measures are those non-disciplinary, non-punitive services, accommodations, or other assistance that the College puts in place for individuals

after receiving notice of alleged violations of this policy, pending the final outcome of any investigation/hearing process, or when no formal complaint is filed. Supportive measures may be imposed for various reasons, including ensuring the safety of the parties or the College community at large; eliminating a hostile work environment; or protecting the integrity of the investigation and/or disciplinary process.

Supportive measures are meant to ensure that both parties involved in a report under this policy continue to have adequate access to educational and/or work opportunities at the College, without unreasonably burdening the other party. A party may request these measures from the office responsible for investigating the report, or the College may offer them on its own initiative when it deems them appropriate. The College will determine which supportive measures are appropriate on a case-by-case basis. Potential supportive measures include a "no contact" directive pending the outcome of the investigation, provision of a security escort, modifications of class schedules or deadlines, emergency removal\*\* from the College's education program and activities or other supportive measures the College deems reasonable and appropriate. The College may make certain supportive measures permanent measures to be applied even after the investigation and/or disciplinary process is complete, when appropriate under the circumstances.

\*\*Should the College determine that an emergency removal of the Respondent from the College's education program or activities is appropriate (i.e., the Respondent poses an immediate threat to the physical health or safety of any student or other individual arising from the allegations of sexual harassment), the College will provide the Respondent with notice and an opportunity to challenge the decision immediately following the removal.

Individuals who have been victims of violations of this policy may also seek other supportive measures both on- and off-campus. Upon becoming aware of a report of a potential violation of this policy, the Title IX Coordinator must promptly contact the potential Complainant to discuss the availability of supportive measures, services, consider the Complainant's wishes with respect to supportive measures, services, and inform the Complainant of the availability of supportive measures, services, with or without the filing of a formal complaint.

Supportive measures are available to both the potential Complainant and potential Respondent. Individuals seeking on-campus support services should be aware that employees must report allegations of violations of this policy to the Title IX Coordinator. Therefore, they cannot guarantee confidentiality. The College will create a list of On-Campus services and Off-Campus Services.

### VII. EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE FOR VICTIMS OF SEXUAL ASSAULT, RELATIONSHIP VIOLENCE OR STALKING

An individual who is in imminent danger of Sexual Assault, Relationship Violence, or Stalking should contact law enforcement or, if on campus, College Security. An

individual can also report emergencies occurring on- or off-campus by dialing 911 to reach the local police department.

In the event of an emergency that requires medical attention, individuals should go to the nearest hospital.

#### VIII. ENFORCEMENT AND TRAINING

The Title IX Coordinator is responsible for ensuring the enforcement of this policy, and for ensuring training regarding this policy, with the ultimate goal of raising awareness and preventing Sexual Harassment, Relationship Violence, and Stalking within the College

#### SECTION II: GENERAL ADMINISTRATION Subsection B: Compliance Policies Policy II.B.5 Clery Act

The Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statistics Act is a Federal law that requires colleges to report criminal activity and statistics on their campuses to the federal and state governments. This information will be reported annually by Erie County Community College along with statistics documented by local law enforcement agencies.

SECTION VI: BUSINESS SERVICES SUBSECTION A: MANAGING PUBLIC PROPERTY/RESOURCES POLICY VI.A.1: PURCHASING GOODS AND SERVICES

#### Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that the Community College receives fair value in the purchase of all goods and services that it acquires and that fair and open competition is allowed for the provision of those goods and services where practical. When determined to be cost effective, the Community College may utilize cooperative purchasing agreements for the purchase of goods and services, subject to the approval of the Vice President for Business. Finance and Administration.

#### Scope

Except to the extent otherwise expressly exempted or excluded below, this regulation applies to the procurement of all goods and/or services by the Community College, whether for operating supplies and services, capital equipment or acquisition or construction of real property.

#### Established Procurement Thresholds

In order to provide for appropriate competition, the Community College shall utilize a three-tiered system as follows:

- A. For Construction, Reconstruction and Repairs (in accordance with 22 PA Code §35.51)
  - 1. Contracts less than \$5,000 may be awarded without soliciting competitive quotes or bids.
  - 2. Contracts equal to or exceeding \$5,000 but less than \$20,000 require soliciting competitive quotes from at least three (3) responsible bidders and shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder.
  - 3. Contracts equal to or exceeding \$20,000 require public notice of bids, the solicitation of sealed competitive bids and shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder.

#### B. For All Other Purchases (excluding Professional Services)

- 1. Contracts less than \$20,000 may be awarded without soliciting competitive bids.
- 2. Contracts equal to or exceeding \$20,000 but less than \$40,000 require soliciting quotes from at least three (3) responsible vendors.
- 3. Contracts equal to or exceeding of \$40,000 require public notice of bids, the solicitation of sealed competitive bids and shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder.

#### C. Professional Services

Purchases of legal, financial, architectural, engineering, certain technological consulting and similar professional services are exempt from the bidding requirements set forth herein.

#### Invitation to Bid Requirements

#### D. Bid Specifications

Detailed specifications for the required product or service shall be included in the Invitation to Bid (ITB). The specifications may also include such requirements for bid bond, payment bond and/or performance bond as are deemed appropriate or otherwise required by this policy.

#### E. Advertising

When public notice is required, the ITB shall be advertised in a daily newspaper of general circulation at least one (1) time commencing not less than ten (10) days prior to the date fixed for the opening of bids.

#### F. Competitive Bidding

Competitive bids shall be submitted to the Community College in sealed envelopes by the time, and at the place, identified by the Community College, and may be opened publicly when required. When required the lowest bidder will be selected.

#### Request for Proposal Requirements

A Request for Proposal (RFP) may be utilized, in the discretion of the Community College, in connection with the procurement of professional services. If utilized, the RFP shall include a listing of the requirements that must be satisfied by the proposer and may include other capabilities, the provision of which would be desirable. Requirements for the advertising of a RFP are the same as for an ITB.

#### **Award Criteria**

The College will identify award criteria. When required, the award shall be made on the basis of the lowest responsible and responsive bid or quote received. In the case of an RFP, award may be based on a competitive negotiation with one or more vendors deemed to have satisfied the mandatory qualifications and requirements specified in the RFP and which, in the sole discretion of the Community College, demonstrate the ability to timely and satisfactorily perform the scope of work described in the RFP.

#### Exceptions to Invitation to Bid (ITB) Requirements

Requirements for bidding as set forth at Item Three (3) above may be waived in the below identified circumstances. The Vice President for Business, Finance and Administration is delegated signature authority for waiving the requirement for competition in the following cases:

#### F. Emergency or Unusual Circumstances

Upon approval by the Pennsylvania Department of Education, competitive bidding may be waived in the event that an unforeseen emergency or condition may cause, or has caused, a portion of the Community College plant or facilities to be unusable.

#### G. Sole Source Purchases

Competitive bidding may be waived where prior experience and investigation reasonably convince the Vice President for Business, Finance and Administration that there is only one vendor or product who can meet the requirement of the College or that formal bidding procedures will not result in any competitive bids being submitted for the product or service being sought due to the lack of competition in the market. Patented or copyrighted products may be considered to be sole source items when acceptable alternative products do not exist.

#### H. Use of External Contracts - Piggybacking

The Community College may "piggyback" off of group purchasing contracts awarded by any other governmental agency or consortium when deemed to be beneficial to the College pursuant to the allowances of the Pennsylvania Procurement Code. Such opportunities include, but not limited to,

contracts awarded by or through the following agencies and entities: United States General Services Administration (GSA), Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Department of General Services Administration (DGS & COSTARS), County of Erie, Education and Institutional Cooperative Services (E&I), U.S. Communities, Keystone Purchasing Network (KPN) and other cooperative purchasing agencies.

#### Issuance of Purchase Orders

#### I. Issuing Department

Purchase Orders shall be issued by the Community College. Purchases by any other means either orally or in writing by persons not designated by the College are not authorized. Persons placing orders otherwise may be held financially responsible for such actions. "Confirming Purchase Orders" are not to be used as a matter of routine and are only to be used in urgent situations with the prior approval of the Vice President for Business, Finance and Administration who will assign an emergency Purchase Order number.

#### J. Partial Purchase Orders

The Vice President for Business, Finance and Administration may issue Partial Purchase Orders against a Master Purchase Order or Purchase Agreement.

#### K. Change Orders

Change orders not exceeding ten (10%) percent of the original award amount may be executed with approval of the President or his/her designee to accomplish an unplanned increase in the scope of work.

## Special Requirements for Acquisition, Construction or Renovation of Real Property

#### L. Bid Bond

All bids shall be accompanied by a bond with a corporate surety authorized to do business in Pennsylvania and acceptable to the Community College in such amount as the Board of Trustees shall determine, but not less than ten (10%) percent of the amount bid. In the event any bidder shall, upon award of the contract, fail to perform; execute an agreement with the Community College, where applicable; or, to comply with the requirements as to a bond guaranteeing the performance of the contract, such bid bond shall be forfeited.

#### M. Performance Bond

The bidder to whom the contract is awarded shall furnish a bond to guarantee the performance of the contract. Such bond shall be with a corporate surety with a corporate surety authorized to do business in Pennsylvania and acceptable to the Community College and in the amount of at least one hundred (100%) percent of the amount of the contract. Failure on the part of the contractor to furnish such bond shall void the previous award.

#### N. Subcontractor Payment Bond

The bidder to whom the contract is awarded shall be required to furnish a bond to guarantee the payment of third party sub-contractors involved in fulfillment of services rendered under the contract. Such bond shall be with a corporate surety with a corporate surety authorized to do

business in Pennsylvania and acceptable to the Community College and in the amount of at least one hundred (100%) percent of the amount of the contract. Failure on the part of the contractor to furnish such bond shall void the award.

#### O. Capital Equipment

All purchases of equipment shall be considered a capital expenditure if an individual item of equipment component cost in excess of \$4,000 and has an expected useful life in excess of one year

#### Requisitions

A purchasing transaction shall be initiated by means of a purchase requisition prepared in such form as is specified by the Vice President for Business, Finance and Administration. The requisition shall be approved by the head of the initiating unit of the Community College, certifying the proper authorization for the purchase and the availability of funds in the budget.